

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or June 16, 2015

EXECUTIVE SESSION

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: Council President Sally Robinson called the meeting to order at 5:13 pm.
- **2. COUNCIL PRESENT:** Council President Robinson, Councilors Linda Henderson, Jennifer Kuiper and Dan King. Mayor Clark arrived at 6:00 pm and Councilors Beth Cooke and Jennifer Harris were absent.
- **3. STAFF PRESENT:** City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, HR Analyst Sherryl Childers, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, Finance Director Julie Blums, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, IT Director Brad Crawford and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.
- 4. TOPICS:
 - **A.** Employment of Public Officers, ORS 192.660(2)(a) and ORS 192.660(7), conduct interviews for City Attorney position.

5. ADJOURN

Mayor Clark adjourned the Executive Session at 6:02 pm and convened to a work session.

WORK SESSION

- 1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 6:08 pm.
- **2. COUNCIL PRESENT:** Mayor Clark, Council President Sally Robinson, Councilors Linda Henderson, Jennifer Kuiper and Dan King. Councilors Beth Cooke and Jennifer Harris were absent.
- **3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT:** City Manager Joseph Gall, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, Police Chief Jeff Groth, HR Analyst Sherryl Childers, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Chad Jacobs.

4. TOPICS:

A. Economic Development Efforts & Future Direction

City Council Minutes June 16, 2015 Page 1 of 22 Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier recapped his presentation and explained the following (see record, Exhibit A).

- On October 7, 2014 the URA Board met to discuss SURPAC and their economic development activities which up to that point had been minimal
- The Board determined that the next Council should take up the question of future economic development activities and how that should be structured. This presentation has been prepared to continue that conversation.
- Sherwood Statistics
- Sherwood Current Economic Development Efforts
- Future Economic Development activities and structure

Tom explained why do Economic Development activities?

- To Create Jobs
- Raise Incomes
- Increase Tax Base
- Assist Local Industries
- Create Stable Economy
- Develop Community

Tom explained a Three Legged Stool Theory

- Leg 1, Community Development
- Leg 2, Business Retention and Expansion
- Leg 3, Business Attraction
- Keeping and Growing existing businesses
- Filling existing storefronts
- Business Incubation and Business Training

Tom further explained Business Retention and Expansion

- Retain and Grow Jobs
- Build the Economy and Increase Community Vitality
- Typically 70-80% of new jobs come from business retention and expansion efforts

Tom explained Business Attraction

• Marketing and incentivizing property to attract private investment to come into local jurisdictions

Tom explained Business Attraction Requirements

- Available land or empty buildings
- Active Marketing Plan
- Many Partners
- Incentives
- Workforce Development and a lot of data

Tom showed an Economic Development Video from the City of Gresham.

Tom explained Workforce Development Resources

- Work Source Oregon
- Work systems (non-profit)
- Code Oregon

Tom reviewed various charts and explained Sherwood data. He explained comparisons of Sherwood data to surrounding cities. He explained Job to Population ratios and issues and how to change the ratios.

Tom reminded the Council of a resolution on their agenda tonight to consider the adoption of a Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) Market Analysis, Business Recruitment Strategy and Implementation Plan. He explained 70-80% of new jobs in Sherwood will come from business attraction in the TEA and said the targeted industries could be different from what Sherwood has previously experienced. He explained the targeted industries for the TEA as: Advanced Manufacturing, Wood, Paper, Printing Manufacturing, Food Processing, Outdoor Gear and Active Wear, Light and Heavy Construction. He explained Advanced Manufacturing and described the types of businesses in this area. He explained what advance manufacturers require as large land sites, well-trained workforce, tax incentives, high levels of infrastructure, and access to international markets and shipping.

Tom spoke of Policy Considerations.

- Should Sherwood target an advanced manufacturer?
- Should Sherwood's economic development be passive or active in business attraction effort?
- Should Sherwood's economic development focus on local, regional or international competition?

Tom explained a chart of passive versus active activities over the next 6-12 months. He explained other policy considerations:

- Industrial Design Standards
- Incentives
- Land-Use review process and Fast Track Application Review

Tom explained Incentive Programs to consider.

- Statewide Investment Program
- Tax Increment Financing Zones
 - o Infrastructure
 - o Tax abatement
- Local Improvement District
- County Property Tax Abatement (if legislature, SB938 passes)

Tom explained the next steps to consider.

- Focus on activities
- Economic Development Policy Advisory Board
- Decision on how we want to implement the TEA Strategic Plan

Council questions and discussion occurred throughout the presentation.

5. ADJOURN

Mayor Clark adjourned the work session at 6:59 pm and convened to a regular Council meeting.

REGULAR SESSION

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm.

- **2. COUNCIL PRESENT:** Mayor Clark, Council President Sally Robinson, Councilors Linda Henderson, Jennifer Kuiper and Dan King. Councilors Beth Cooke and Jennifer Harris were absent.
- 3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joseph Gall, Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier, Police Chief Jeff Groth, Community Development Director Julia Hajduk, Finance Director Julie Blums, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Community Services Director Kristen Switzer, Center for the Arts Director Maggie Chapin, City Engineer Bob Galati, HR Analyst Sherryl Childers, Library Manager Adrienne Doman Calkins, Administrative Assistant Michelle Babcock, Administrative Assistant Angela Hass, Administrative Assistant Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Chad Jacobs.

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item and asked for a motion.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO AMEND THE AGENDA TO ADD NEW EMPLOYEE INTRODUCTION TO ITEM 6 PRESENTATIONS, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KUIPER, MOTION PASSED 5:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILORS JENNIFER HARRIS AND BETH COOKE WERE ABSENT).

MOTION AS AMENDED: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS AMENDED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KING, MOTION PASSED 5:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILORS JENNIFER HARRIS AND BETH COOKE WERE ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda and asked for a motion.

5. CONSENT AGENDA:

- A. Approval of June 2, 2015 City Council Meeting Minutes
- B. Resolution 2015-049 Certifying May 2015 Election Results
- C. Resolution 2015-050 Certifying the provision of certain municipal services in order to qualify the City to receive State revenues

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KING. MOTION PASSED 5:0, ALL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILORS JENNIFER HARRIS AND BETH COOKE WERE ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda.

6. PRESENTATIONS:

A. Swearing In of new Elected Official

Mayor Clark administered the Oath of Office to incoming City Councilor Renee Brouse. Councilor Brouse took her seat at the dais.

Record Note: With the swearing in of Renee Brouse, Councilor Beth Cooke's temporary appointment to the City Council has concluded.

B. New Employee Introduction

Center for the Arts Director Maggie Chapin introduced Leah Burgess as the new Events and Arts Program Coordinator. Leah provided background on her experience and the Council welcomed her.

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda.

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS:

None. Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda.

8. NEW BUSINESS

A. Resolution 2015-051 Accepting the Tonquin Employment Area Market Analysis, Business Recruitment Strategy and Implementation Plan

Community Development Director Julia Hajduk presented information (see record, Exhibit B) and introduced the consultants from Mackenzie Group that worked on the plan, Todd Johnson and Brian Varricchione. Julia provided background information and said in 2004 the Tonquin Employment Area (TEA) was brought into the Urban Growth Boundary by Metro and in 2010 the City did a concept plan that was adopted by the Council. She said in 2012 there was a large lot industrial site readiness project and a site that was studied was the 90 acre Orr property within the TEA. She said one of the things the study highlighted was the issues and constraints of development and the timeliness. She said one of the things the City determined we could do to help with minimizing the time was to address the voter annexation issue. She said in 2012 the City voters authorized annexation of the area when individual properties petitioned to come in. She said it was a pre-authorization of annexation so the property owners don't have the additional time requirement for a Citywide vote if they choose to annex. Julia explained from this point forward a property owner would just need to come in with a petition and there would be a Council public hearing and a decision of the Council.

Julia explained in 2013 the City applied for and received a grant from Metro to do the Implementation Plan and identify actions needed to move the area forward to develop. She said this project is part of a larger project at the county level doing large lot industrial site readiness for 15 lots throughout Washington County. She said one of the sites in the study area is a 38 acre site, the Biles property. She explained the focus on the TEA and Tualatin Concept Plan Area is to evaluate existing plans and market conditions to determine feasibility for different types of industry and identify issues of constraints impacting the ability to develop the area. She said the key thing we are looking to get out of the project is a toolbox of actions that could reduce issues. She referred to 26 actions listed in the meeting packet that will require future conversations to discuss how to move forward.

Julia explained the outcomes and said the Implementation Plan does not change the Concept Plan, Comprehensive Plan, Zoning, or Development Code, but is a strategy for how we want to proceed.

Julia said as explained in the work session, it validates the types of users that the City wants is achievable, provides a toolbox of recommended actions and identifies potential phasing to help focus energy on the areas of greatest immediate impact.

Julia referred to a map in the exhibit which identifies the phasing plan, which includes both Sherwood and Tualatin and identifies the areas that we think are most likely to develop first. She said this allows us to focus on needed infrastructure improvements or focus on annexation target areas. Julia explained the next steps and said there will be a lot of conversations about priorities and effort levels with many of the recommended strategies. She said staff will continue to find opportunities for outside funding with applying for MISTIP Funds and RTP funds (Regional Flexible Funds), where they are applicable and continue to seek funds through the EDA. She said in addition to seeking funding, staff will continue to meet with and provide support to property owners in the area.

Julia stated the consults are present to answer Council questions.

Councilor Kuiper stated she is in the process of reading the material and said it is very thorough and thanked Julia for seeking a grant to get this funded. She said otherwise studies like this that are needed, we don't have the funding for. Councilor Kuiper stated this is listed under New Business and we haven't completely reviewed the document.

Mayor Clark said this document is presented to us as a study and we are accepting the study, it is not an action and we are not taking action on the Tonquin Employment Area. She clarified what the Council is doing is accepting the study so that we can further review the study and have time to discuss the data and the recommendations and options available. Mayor Clark confirmed with Julia that this was correct.

Mayor Clark asked for a motion.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KUIPER TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2015-051, SECONDED BY MAYOR CLARK. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS PRESENT VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Councilor Brouse stated that since the Council will be going into budget business she would like to make a statement of a conflict of interest. She said many know she is a paid employee of the YMCA of Columbia Willamette and one of her roles is to serve as the Executive Director of the Sherwood Branch. She said the YMCA of Columbia Willamette has an operating agreement with the City of Sherwood, and although the YMCA does not receive funds from the City, the operating agreement, in section 10(a) and (b) discusses City YMCA repair obligations. She said in the proposed 2015-16 City Budget, page 65 budget detail of the General Fund Public Works, the YMCA is referenced in the 2015-16 Goals, seal coat and repairs to YMCA parking lot and removal and replacement of 25 trees that are in poor condition at the YMCA. She stated due to this she is declaring an actual conflict of interest under ORS 244.0201 and will recuse herself from discussion and voting on Resolution 2015-057 adopting the fiscal year 2015-16 budget of the City.

Mayor Clark clarified that the Council was not addressing that resolution yet and said when the Council gets to it, they will go back to Councilor Brouse's comments and she can remove herself from the seat. Mayor Clark asked if Councilor Brouse was declaring a conflict to discuss Resolution 2015-052. Ms.

Brouse indicated the declaration was for Resolution 2015-057 only. Mayor Clark said when the Council gets to Resolution 2015-057 they will readdress the issue.

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item.

B. Resolution 2015-052 Transferring Budget Expenditure Appropriations Between Categories For Budget Year 2014-15

Finance Director Julie Blums stated the Council has before them a final appropriations transfer to true-up budget to actuals for the year. Julie explained there are several this year and we are moving money between categories that have already been appropriated. She said we are not appropriating new money, we are just moving it between categories of expenditures. Julie recapped the staff report and areas of adjustments.

Mayor Clark asked for Council questions or comments.

Councilor Brouse referred to the Water Operations Fund and language of "higher than estimated costs" and asked if this is expected to continue.

Public Works Director Craig Sheldon stated its difficult to determine that and said every August we have an estimate and this year we had a warm winter and had additional water use and this information wasn't known last January. He said if we continue to have warmer springs and falls, irrigations could continue to increase.

Councilor Brouse asked what's the difference between capital improvements and capital outlay. Julie replied capital improvement is typically building new assets or acquiring new assets and capital outlay is usually for smaller items.

With no other questions or comments, the following motion was received.

MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-052, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KUIPER. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS PRESENT VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item.

C. Resolution 2015-053 Adopting the Capital Improvement Project Plan for Fiscal Year 2015-16

Julie Blums asked the City Engineer to come forward and said the Council received a copy of the Capital Improvement Plan (see record, Exhibit A to Res. 2015-053). She stated staff spent a lot of time putting together the Plan and in prior years, our 5 year plan was on a single spreadsheet. She explained this information is in the resolution as this is what the Council is approving for the year. Julie explained the Plan received by the Council has project detail.

Mayor Clark thanked City Engineer Galati for his work on the Plan and said it's a great tool that gives the Council a great view of what they are looking at for the future. She clarified to the Council this is not a commitment, it's a reference document for the Council to decide what capital projects they want to move City Council Minutes forward on. She said this is exactly what the Council needs in transparency to move forward. She asked for Council comments. Councilor Robinson stated she concurs with the Mayor's comments.

With no other comments, the following motion was received.

MOTION: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2015-053, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS PRESENT VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda, and the City Recorder read the public hearing statement.

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Resolution 2015-054 Updating the City Of Sherwood Water System Development Charges Methodology

Finance Director Julie Blums stated Deb Galardi the consultant who worked on the SDC Methodology and Water Rate component that will be heard in the next resolution was present tonight. She said in the Council meeting packet there is a draft methodology and a few months back the Council held a work session. Julie said what is being proposed based on the new completed Master Plan adopted in April, is that the SDC for water needs to be changed and reduced overall. Julie said the allocation for the SDC is changing slightly from mostly improvement to a reimbursement SDC, but overall the total cost is going down.

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing. With no public testimony received, she closed the public hearing and asked for Council questions.

Council President Robinson stated she did not have any questions but wanted the public to understand this as a two-step phase. She said the resolution before the Council is just for the SDC calculation and the next resolution on the agenda has to do with the water rates as part of a normal fee structure. She said she believes we have done a great job with our consultant and staff in preparing us for the methodology. She said we have reviewed it and she feels comfortable adopting the resolution on the SDC's.

City Manager Gall asked for the benefit of the public, how often do City's do this? Annually, every five or every ten years?

Deb Galardi stated generally the SDC's change every year based on an inflationary index, Engineering News Construction Cost Index, and this way you are keeping pace with inflation. She stated they are then adjusted more significantly anytime there is a major change in the capital improvement program, so doing it in conjunction with an updated master plan is most appropriate. She said if something else changes in the CIP, it can be sooner than five-ten years, otherwise it's usually with the master plan.

Mayor Clark asked Ms. Galardi to explain for the public the rational for lowering the fee.

Ms. Galardi stated this SDC follows industry standards practice and Oregon Statutes with respect to the maximum allowable that you can charge new development. She said we look at the projects that are in the Capital Improvement Plan as recommended by the Master Plan and go through a rigorous process to identify that which is growth related. She said unlike the water rates which pays for operations and maintenance costs and capital costs, both for existing and future development to the extent in terms of the timing, the SDC's would only cover that portion of the capital improvement costs that relate to new capacity for future development. She said it's one small piece of the whole water system funding scheme and we are working within limitations of Oregon law of how much we can recover. She said this is just reflective purely of going through that process with this new plan looking at water use demands and all those things that have changed since the City did their last Master Plan.

City Recorder Murphy reminded the Council of an item that was submitted into the record for this resolution, an emailed letter from the Home Builders Association, (see record, Exhibit C).

Mayor Clark asked for a motion.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KUIPER TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2015-054, SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS PRESENT VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item.

B. Resolution 2015-055 Adopting a Schedule of Fees as authorized by the City Zoning and Community Development Code, establishing fees for miscellaneous City services and establishing an effective date

Finance Director Julie Blums stated this resolution is the annual update to the Fee Schedule effective July 1, 2015. She said this year we have only a few changes to the fee schedule and on page 152 of the meeting packet the changes are outlined. Julie reviewed the changes as indicated in the staff report. She stated the changes to Section 2: Library non-resident card is per Washington County Cooperative Library Services (WCCLS). The other two fees are for products the library sells. In Section 3: Police, Julie stated the department has been doing many background checks and did not have a fee established, so this is a new fee. Section 5: Parks and Recreation, under Center for the Arts, a new fee for patio usage and patio rental. Julie explained the fee deletion of training for an outside Av Tech and said originally staff thought we would have groups come in and the City would charge a fee to train on how to use the equipment. She said with the new Center for the Arts, it was determined that City staff should be operating the technical equipment to protect the asset. Julie explained the fees for renting the Cannery Square have been in place for several years and the City has never actually charged the fee, therefore they have been deleted. She said this conversation will come up again with the Council as we need to be consistent with fees as we have a state loan on this property.

Julie addressed Section 6: Utility Charges for Fees and said the proposal is based on the new Master Plan, that water rates would be increased 4% this year and the proposal is 4% each year for the next five years. She explained the current proposal is for this year with a 4% increase. She said as Ms. Galardi mentioned SDC's can only pay for growth and we have an entire system that we need to maintain and there is one other option to do that. She said our fixed costs are the majority of our costs for water operations, we have very little non-fixed costs when it comes to our water operations. She said to City Council Minutes

maintain our system to meet our debt covenant requirements and cover our operating materials program this increase is needed. She said we are proposing to change the irrigation consumption rate to match our residential consumption rate. She explained there are changes for non-payment and non-compliance after hours and weekends and the current rate is \$50 and it was determined that if staff has to come out on weekends or after hours the actual cost is \$100 to the City. She said new fees were added related to the new AMI, (radios, registers and antennas). She said changes were made to Sanitary and Storm Rates and these are passed on from Clean Water Services and the City is not changing our surcharge rate. Julie referred to Section 7: SDC's and said these are what the updated SDC's will be and said the Sewer SDC's is what Clean Water Services charges and the City collects the fee. Julie referred to Section 9: Planning and a new fee for Medical Marijuana Facilities.

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing. With no public coming forward she closed the public hearing and asked for Council questions.

Councilor Kuiper referred to the medical marijuana and asked how much is the notification fee and is it a State fee? Community Development Director Julia Hajduk stated it is based on the type of land use application, a Type II which is \$284.

Council President Robinson asked what happens if we don't increase the rates on water consumption? Julie replied there are several options, there are some capital projects that could not be done, eventually we will consume our fund balance and we will be out of compliance for our debt, which can affect our credit rating in the future. She said we won't have enough money to cover our fixed costs for operating the system.

Mayor Clark asked where does the 4% go? Julie said it goes into the water operations fund to pay for maintenance, debt and some of it will pay for a small portion of capital projects that are not eligible for SDC funding.

Mayor Clark asked for an example of a capital project that is not eligible. Public Works Director Craig Sheldon said our water conservation and management plan, resiliency plan, SCADA upgrades, (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) which are due for replacement, vulnerability studies in certain projects. Craig said about \$50,000 goes away for the mainline replacement program for our older parts of town.

Council President Robinson said previous to the current request to increase water rates, the prior Council had declined to increase rates when it was appropriate to do so years ago, is that correct? Julie replied yes. Ms. Robinson said, they kicked the can down to us for us to increase rates. Julie explained, part of that was, we were in the middle of the treatment plant, pipeline, and reservoir and there were still many unknowns, and there was not a comfort level by the previous Council to say yes, we need to increase them, because we were still in the middle of those projects. She said now that those are done and we have updated the Master Plan and we have our path forward, this is where we are at, and this is still far lower than what the last Master Plan and Rate Study said where we should be right now, we are still far below that.

Councilor King asked how long has it been since we've raised the rates? Julie replied 2012, 3 years.

Mayor Clark said, this money is specifically allocated for those water needs. Julie replied yes. Mayor Clark said this money does not go into any general fund? Julie replied no. Mayor Clark said this money does not fund the employment of any individual in the City? Julie replied, water employees, that are part of the operating system. Mayor Clark asked who would be a water employee? Craig Sheldon replied, there is a small percentage of his time, a small percentage of the Utility Manager's time and the meter reader, and a couple of maintenance people. Craig said, and we might get some crossover for people that are actually working in water if we have a main break or any leaks. Mayor Clark said, each one of those employees being paid under this fund are specifically addressing water needs and water issues in the City. Craig and Julie replied yes.

Council President Robinson stated, is it not true that our billing system has become more efficient so we are not spending as much as we would otherwise and all the meters we have now.....She asked if we have replaced all the meters in town. Craig replied we have about 3000 replaced and said, we brought the AMI forward a few years ago and we are currently two weeks into not reading any meters right now and that two weeks is actually being spent on starting in July, street sweeping. He said the machine we bought from Clean Water Services, that employee has moved over so there is a savings there.

Councilor Brouse said it mentions the average consumption rate and asked what that rate is and what it equates too. Craig replied it is based off of 5000 gallons and the difference is about \$2.25. Ms. Galardi stated that is for the total bill and the consumption rate is currently .57 for 100 gallons.

Mayor Clark asked for an average of what a household would see as a result of this 4% increase. Ms. Galardi replied \$2.25 per month.

Council President Robinson said to clarify further, that does not include the charges that we are simply passing on from storm water and sewer that we don't have any choice in the matter. She asked what is the increase on an average resident bill for those two charges? Craig stated the information is in the packet, sewer is 3% and storm water is 7.4% for an average bill. Mayor Clark stated this is being passed through to us from Clean Water Services and we won't have sewer service should we not pass this, correct? Julie replied correct.

Mayor Clark stated she is not trying to make light of it but she hears regularly that our water rates are very high and she is not in favor of making them higher. She said, but if the reason behind it is not to grow government because as a general rule, she is not about growing government, but instead to keep up with the cost of inflation and pay for the actual service, then that is something she can embrace a bit more. She said it does become difficult to pay the fees in the City and said staff did a good report to the Council, about our neighboring cities, who are having water wars, in trying to figure out where their water is going to come from, are being faced with this issue and faced with double digit increases that are going to continue as we are keeping in the low single digits. She said she wants to make sure we are very clear and transparent about what this pays for.

Councilor King stated their rates will far surpass ours in ten years.

Mayor Clark said that as a whole this is not growing government, this is paying for service of our water and our sewer.

Julie stated this is something we will keep an eye on, we are not going to shelve this and look at it in five or ten years. She said if there are major changes in our water system, we will look at it and make adjustments at those times if there are changes. She said this is an ongoing process for us and not a onetime thing and staff will monitor the program and go back to the consultant to rework the numbers.

Mayor Clark asked how will you be alerted to significant changes. Julie replied, if we have a partner in the water system, this is probably the biggest change. Ms. Galardi stated she believes also the treatment plant expansion and some of the capital projects are dependent on what happens at the treatment plant and that the master plan or facility plan is currently underway and that may change the timing. She said we've had to assume that will happen in a certain year and if that gets delayed because water use has been dropping in both cities then that could help out as well. She said there are a number of variables, and while I say that SDC's you can look out five years and not have to change them, with the rates, it's a much closer monitoring, tracking of revenues and slow customer growth. She said if either of these pick up, this improves the picture, but the treatment plant costs are a major factor.

Councilor King stated this is going to be based on TVWD and what they do at their plant. He said everyone is going to look at how not to use Portland water.

Councilor Kuiper asked how often does Clean Water Services raise their rates? Julie replied every year and said they have said this will continue.

City Manager Gall stated that the County Board of Commissioners is the Board of Clean Water Services and he doesn't believe they hear very often from residents around the County when they raise rates. He said the rates have been raised consistently for years.

Councilor Kuiper asked if the increase is standard every year? Craig replied they have informed the City to expect 3-4% every year on the sanitary side.

Councilor Brouse asked what would happen if the City did not include that piece on the billing and they billed separately? Julie replied we have an IGA with them.

The following motion was received.

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2015-055 WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE INCREASE IN WATER CONSUMPTION RATES, AND AMEND THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION TO DELETE THAT FROM THE FEE SCHEDULE. MOTION FAILED, NO SECOND WAS RECEIVED.

Mayor Clark stated the motion dies and asked for another motion.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-055, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KING. MOTION PASSED 5:1. (MAYOR CLARK, COUNCILORS HENDERSON, KING, KUIPER AND BROUSE VOTED IN FAVOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON VOTED AGAINST). (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item.

C. Resolution 2015-056 Declaring the City of Sherwood's election to receive State revenues

Julie Blums stated every year the State requires each jurisdiction who receives state revenue to declare that they want to continue to receive State revenue. She said there are several forms of revenue we receive from the State, this particular type is a pool to share and we also receive State revenue for liquor tax, cigarette tax and vehicle tax.

Councilor Kuiper asked if the City has to give them anything back because we are accepting this revenue. Julie replied no.

City Manager Gall stated if we did not pass this resolution, they could potentially withhold the money. Julie confirmed.

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing.

Eugene Stewart, Sherwood property owner approached the Council and said he would like to know how much money we are receiving and where it is being spent. He said he has a right to ask this question according to State statute. He said the City has the option of not taking it and having it go back. He said at this public hearing you're supposed to inquire if the public has any thoughts on where the money should be spent and this doesn't seem to be publicized too much. He said as he stated at the budget hearing, he believes some thought should be given to helping the senior center by helping Loaves & Fishes fund the director's position. He said their budget is costing them about \$110,000 for the next year. He said also noted in the State statute, the option for the Council to use it to reduce the citizen's taxes. He said he would like to know at this time where the money is being spent as required by law.

Finance Director Julie Blums stated this revenue goes into the general fund and is just used for general purpose of general fund expenses, we don't allocate it to anything specific. She said this revenue source is about \$188,000, this is what we are anticipating for the next year.

Mr. Stewart stated he believes the statute directs a more specific answer on what it is being used for and said why not with my idea given to what to use it for, there has not been any discussion. He said he saw one memo on a thought that you don't want their money to go out of town, but please remember there is a lot of money coming into town from Meals on Wheels and we are still not in the clear with what they are going to do. Are they going to cut down to only one employee. He said it's a huge deficit and most of the other centers are running at a \$30,000-\$40,000 deficit and they are looking at all the centers to see what they want to do. He said they have an option to opt out with a 30 day notice. He said it seems like you should have something more specific on what the money is being used for as the statute requires you to do.

Mayor Clark asked City Manager Gall to speak to the City's relationship with Loaves & Fishes. City Manager Gall asked Kristen Switzer Community Services Director to come forward. He said Mr. Stewart has raised this issue through the budget committee process and we have an agreement with Meals on Wheels and we have no indication that they are going to change an agreement in the near future, they may as it comes up for renegotiation. He said we have significant reserves that are there for this type of unexpected potential and we have a lot of unexpected potentials and this is why we have reserves. He said taking money from our general fund and dedicating it to Meals on Wheels doesn't guarantee that the money will be spent on our center, they can take the money and spend it in Hillsboro.

Ms. Switzer stated the City Manager covered it quite well. She said this could come up in the future and at this point they have not asked us to renegotiate our deal or our agreement and at this point they are not only covering meals they are also doing programming. She said this is something we might have to look at in the future but her thoughts are until they come to us and discuss this she doesn't know if it would be in the City's best interest to go to them and offer \$100,000 that would not necessarily stay in Sherwood. She said we would have to completely change our agreement and take over the operations which would be more than just one staff person.

Councilor King replied they are in the middle of reorganizing and we really don't want to deal with it until we know what they want. Ms. Switzer replied this would be her recommendation.

City Manager Gall stated he believes this gets into a larger conversation that the Mayor initiated. He said over the next few months we are going to talk about recreation and part of recreation is the senior center, the history of the center and what other centers do and what if Meals on Wheels pulls out and discontinues programming, what would that look like for the City. He said he believes this will be part of the conversation in the next few months and he doesn't want to ignore the conversation, he doesn't see funding it at this point as it's just a potential. He said this is not a new issue.

Ms. Switzer stated we have been taking about this and they have been very open about it, for the last 18 months and believes this is coming and believes the relationship is going to look different in the future but doesn't believe we are there yet and we need more time and we need their new leadership to get underway and figure out how they want to run things in Sherwood and we need to be able to have those conversations.

With no further public testimony, Mayor Clark closed the public hearing,

Mayor asked if the Council had other comments. None were received. She said she thinks that Mr. Stewart brought up a good issue and said you have prepared a budget and the budget committee passed the budget. She confirmed with Julie Blums the funds are in the Budget as part of the general fund. Mayor Clark said she believes you have to look at the budget for the City as a pie and there are pieces of the pie and each piece can only be spent for certain things. She stated this general fund money can be spent on a lot of different things. Julie Blums confirmed and said the funds can be spent on police services, administration, Center for the Arts, parks, anything that is funded by the general fund.

Mayor Clark stated the Council weighs in on how that money is spent through the budget process.

Councilor Brouse asked for clarification, if in the future the City receives more information from Meals on Wheels, Loaves & Fishes, that money could be allocated or reallocated to help assist the Senior Center if needed? Julie replied in order to do that a decision would have to be made of what we are not going to do because that money is allocated to cover the cost that are as a whole in the general fund.

City Manager Gall stated, or if the Council decides we are not going to cut anywhere else and we are going to continue to do the programming for seniors and continue with what we are currently doing through the Meals on Wheels contract, during this next fiscal year you could dip into reserves to do that potentially.

Councilor Kuiper asked how do we know that the \$188,000 is not in the contingency fund, because we really don't know. Brief discussion occurred regarding the funds being part of the general fund and not allocated.

City Manager Gall confirmed with the Finance Director that there are very few revenue sources that are restricted to be used for certain things. He gave the example of the Metro CET Program and \$70,000 the City will receive and said we will be very specific and will report back to Metro on how that money is spent. He said there is no requirement in State law that we tell the State how we are spending State revenue. He said this is sufficient.

Ms. Blums stated when we have restrictions on revenue we try to put that into a different fund other than the general fund so that it can be strictly tracked. She said the revenue we have in the general fund is just that, general revenue to be used for daily operations of the City.

Mayor Clark commented regarding the importance of the public understanding it's not one big piece and the importance to understand how we are allocating our funds. She said she appreciates the transparency. Mayor Clark asked for a motion.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR BROUSE TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-056, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KING. MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL MEMBERS PRESENT VOTED IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next agenda item.

Councilor Brouse stepped down from the dais.

D. Resolution 2015-057 Adopting the FY2015-16 budget of the City of Sherwood, making appropriations, imposing and categorizing taxes, and authorizing the City Manager to take such action necessary to carry out the adopted budget

Mayor Clark stated Councilor Brouse has declared an actual conflict of interest and said she believes she pointed this out during the election and said she is glad to see this and believes it's very prudent. She said going through the budget and voting on the budget is one of the most important things we do as a Council. Allocating how we spend our money in the City, she takes this very seriously. She said we receive taxes from citizens and we are tasked with spending it appropriately and it's a very important task. She said this budget cycle we had a very new budget committee and she has decided as the mayor to appoint new people to our committees and it has been fantastic. She said they asked great questions and was marvelous discussion. She said we added an extra day which she was thrilled to do and believes the more questions and the more transparency the better the process. She said it was respectful and the members did not always agree but each time we disagreed we did it without being disagreeable. She said she is proud of the committee and of the work that has been put before the Council.

Mayor Clark opened the public hearing,

Lori Zwingly came forward and said she is a Sherwood resident and the Chair of the Police Advisory Board and she is here in that capacity. She said at the last Police Advisory Board meeting Chief Groth presented a 90 minute presentation that addressed what the police department can and cannot do on its current budget. She said he presented the Board with information many of the members were not aware of and the members took that information to the citizens of Sherwood over the last month. She said she is here tonight based on the information they have received back from the citizens and the information received from Chief Groth, to respectfully request the Council approve the police department' requested budget for this year. She said the most resounding piece of information, that which resounded the most with the community members they have spoken with so far, is the number of SRO's (School Resource Officer). She said we have 1 SRO in a community of about 5000 children, and we have 8 schools. She said the SRO can make an occasional appearance at the elementary schools and he cannot get to the middle schools, and spends his time primarily at the high school in a reactive capacity, not a proactive capacity. She said this is concerning our citizens especially in light of the fact that some of our neighboring communities, Tualatin and Tigard in particular, where we have a ratio of 1-5000 they have a ratio of 1-2000 or less. She said our citizens believe this number sounds better. She said they were excited of the idea of maybe adding additional police officers, at least one, to address issues at the schools, and to have more of a presence on our streets. She said the other big issue was drugs in Sherwood, particularly at Stella Olsen Park. She said it has become more of an issue than many of us have been aware of. She said the reputation of our park is extending beyond the borders of Sherwood. She said our children go into the park and she has received many reports of parents not allowing their kids to visit the park unaccompanied anymore because they are routinely approached and asked if they want to buy drugs. She said, with that in mind and based on the information we have received, we are respectfully requesting the Council approve the police department budget for the upcoming year.

With no further testimony, Mayor Clark closed the public hearing.

Mayor Clark stated during the budget cycle we talked about many different budgets, police and community development, and I asked Chief Groth and he has proposed adding a police officer and I think adding a police officer is preemptive at this time because we are currently in this budget, we have funded to do a police staffing study. She said that being said, all of us want more and would like more police officers in our schools, patrolling our streets. She said she can't say she wouldn't want this, of course she would and would want to have many more. She said where the rubber hits the road, is when you have to pay for it. She said do we need additional police staff or not, and believes this is a big question in the room. She said what we want and need are two different things and this is why, instead of making a guess on how we feel, and what we want, we decided as a Council to approve doing a police staffing study. She said with the study, the outside consultants can tell us this is what the City needs. She said we don't know what the study will say our needs are and instead of saying we need this addition of \$93,000 to our staff right now, it seems preemptive when we are going to do a study and they are going to tell us what we need. She said we may need that, but why would we do it now instead of waiting for the study. She commented about the potential outcome of the study indicating more or less staff and if less, having to lay-off staff and pay for unemployment. She said this does not seem to her to be a good fiscal decision. She said she is not against adding police officers if the staffing study comes back indicating the need for more then we should add more, but at this time it's preemptive and not prudent to do so.

Mayor Clark made the following motion.

MOTION TO AMEND: FROM MAYOR CLARK TO REMOVE \$93,000 FROM THE POLICE DEPARTMENT SERVICES DIVISION GENERAL FUND AND PUT IT INTO THE CONTINGENCY FUND IN AWAITING THE STAFFING STUDY. SECONDED BY COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON. Councilor Kuiper said she has a slightly different opinion than the Mayor and said there are a lot of cities in the Portland Metro area that are probably going to add a police officer or two in their budgets without having a staffing study done. She said she does not believe it is preemptive and does believe there is a high enough need and there was certainly a compelling argument made for her to make a decision. She said there are two separate issues, there's a staffing study that is in the budget but there is also something equally compelling where she believes there is a need for another, at least one more officer. She said the other item to address a counter argument, is, we have a growing City and we might be 19,000 now, but she guarantees in a couple of years we will be at 21,000-22,000. She said even if we do hire another police officer and the study comes back indicating we are over staffed, she said in a couple of years we won't be. She said she is willing to take this chance.

Council President Robinson said as she commented at the budget committee meeting, she thinks that in the next year we will see an increased need for police to address recreational marijuana, compliance and violations that will likely occur. She said having looked at that and thought about it more, she thinks this is not going to be a true need for us until next fiscal year. She said what she has expressed very strongly, is her opinion that it is not acceptable in her mind that we only have one Student Resource Officer. She said given the fact that our schools are bursting, and we are having to do boundary adjustments because one of them is way over capacity, she thinks it is truly important to reach out to our youth at this point in time to stop crime and stop other issues on drugs and alcohol that might be prevalent in our community by having that SRO in our elementary schools. She said as our resident who came forward mentioned, we are well below other communities in our area that do seek to have those outreach efforts and its her expectation that our police force should be ramping up that effort to reach out to all the elementary schools, all four of them. She said she thinks, her personal belief, that the study will come back and say that we need one if not two more SRO's to protect our community. She said the only reason she voted for the budget at the budget committee level was that she was approving additional police staff for moving forward towards the addition of getting that SRO in place now and not next year. She said she thinks she made that clear when she voted on the budget. She said she doesn't see it to be a problem moving the funds over to contingency knowing that we have two extra people on staff in our police division, this year than we did last year. One was on administrative leave and was not able to work in his normal capacity. and one lateral came on board since then and we just swore in another officer that won't be available for six months, but will be available before the fiscal year ends, so we'll have him as well. She said she is hopeful we can achieve all those objectives.

Councilor King commented regarding the police equation and said there are many different angles to attack this from. He said from a staffing issue, we have people go and do reserve duty, military duties or have medical issues and when you look at the total number of staff and how many people are actually working, its less than the actual staff number because of these types of issues. He said it's about flexibility in scheduling. He said he doubts that the study will coming back indicating we need less and will bet that will not happen. He commented on the timeline of getting an officer on the road and fully working and staff indicated it could be 18 months. Councilor King said the urgency is right now, not 18 months from now. He said looking at it from a staffing point of view, the flexibility, people being able to take time off, it's a livability issue for Sherwood and a livability issue for the people working in the department. He commented regarding information Mayor Clark obtained from the City of Wilsonville and said in looking at the staffing numbers there, those people that work in Wilsonville work for Clackamas County and you can base on what their staffing is and what they are doing and how their command structure is, if you read through it, it disturbs him, because of the fact they don't have a supervisor covering their shifts. He said to bim this is completely uncertable. He can don't have a supervisor covering their shifts. He said to bim this is completely uncertable.

him this is completely unacceptable. He said we actually have less officers than we did a few years ago, City Council Minutes June 16, 2015 staffing wise. He said there is no question we are short. He said even though we are doing the staffing study and he is glad we are, he thinks it will give us an accurate story of where we should be and believes it is not where we are today.

Councilor Henderson asked Chief Groth how many people, with the addition of one officer, he has asked for in 2015-16, how many in total. Chief Groth replied including non-sworn, 26. She said she is inclined to agree wholeheartedly with Councilor Kuiper and King in that we live in a wonderful community with a very low crime rate because we are very deliberate and Chief Groth's staff is very dedicated at keeping the crime rate at a very low percentage. She said this is not something that happens overnight, in her opinion, this is something that you dedicate time and service, and training, and officers too. And in order to maintain that crime rate we have to have so many people on staff. She said she was in the police department last week and ran into Pete Miller a former middle school principle and he is the expulsion officer for the school district. She said he meets with parents and police staff at the police station and in their conversation he said the YSAT (Youth Substance Abuse Team) is the singular most important program we have put into Sherwood that he has recognized with keeping kids out of juvenile detention and getting them back into school right away. She said he does not have this same program in other school districts where he serves as the expulsion officer. She commented regarding the concerns brought up by Councilors, crime, drugs, truancy and said keeping on top of this is important, addressing the youth and keeping crime low. She said she will not be voting to remove this from the budget, personally. She said in researching, in 2005-06 our police department had 25.5 employees and this was a slight increase from 2004-05. If 10 years later we have .5 of an employee, more than we had in 2005-06, she thinks this is a trend that is not in the best interest of Sherwood and not in the best interest of the citizens that live here. She said many reasons people move here is because of low crime and public safety services may be the most important public service we provide as a City and it's at the top of her list of importance right now, next to water. She said she is concerned about maintaining the system we have and the low crime rate if we don't start addressing the fact that 10 years ago we had the same amount of staff at the police department, that we have today. She said she is also in favor of the staffing study and doesn't believe it's going to say that we need less people and believes it's an opportunity for a third party to come in, similar to the best practice review done at the police department where we passed with glowing colors and other municipalities did not. She said her support is to the Police department, and she cares more for maintaining the safety we have than a third party staffing study that we don't know how long it will take.

Mayor Clark asked City Manager Gall how long the staffing study will take. Mr. Gall replied the request for proposal is currently out and the deadline is June 30 and we hope to get 3-6 proposals. He said there are not a lot of companies that do this. He said we will evaluate the proposals and hopefully make a decision. He said he won't know how long it will take until we get a proposal from a company and he hopes to have the results from a study, minimum of 3 months, maximum of 6 months, certainly in anticipation of next year's budget cycle.

Mayor Clark said we are looking at 3-6 months and wants to make sure we are clear on her take on this. She said speaking for herself, her motion is not against the police department and she is 100% for the police department. She thinks our police do a great job in our City, we have a very low crime rate for lots of reasons. She said we also have one of the highest per capita incomes in the state, and people who make \$100,000 to \$300,000 per year are not usually criminals. She said this should not diminish the work our police do on a day to day basis. They handle all types of crimes and this is very important work, and this is why she believes we should have a police staffing study. She said she has no feelings one way or another whether it will come back indicting the need for more or less. She said whatever it says is what City Council Minutes

she thinks we should do. She said she believes in having statistical data to back up your reasoning, not "I feel this way", she said this is not a good way to run a City. She said a budget is a budget and we are here to talk about how much money we are allocating and she believes before we allocate more money to a fund we should have the statistical data to support and defend that addition, not because she doesn't value our police department. She said of course she values our police department, they are fantastic, it's because she wants the data for her citizens to say absolutely, that's what we need. She said she likes to have facts on her decision making and this is why she is voting yes on her motion.

Council President Robinson stated she supports the motion because, she thinks it's appropriate to get the right kind of person we are looking for and what we really need as a police officer vetted out during this survey and she thinks we will need more SRO's. She said she would rather put the money in the contingency fund and wait until the study is completed and wait to get the right type of person than to just to get an officer onboard and hope that he fills whatever roll we need him in. She said for instance, if we can find another SRO in another district who is wanting to come to Sherwood, we may not catch that person if we are not hiring for an SRO. She said this is where her beliefs fall in line with the Mayor's on this particular issue. She said she too fully supports our police and thinks we will need to increase, but thinks we need to be smart about the increase and at what level we increase staff, as there are different levels for all of our officers that are very different, not only in the things they do on a day to day basis, but also on a salary level. She said she thinks it's important to have this information.

Mayor Clark said a motion and a second are on the table and called for a vote.

MOTION FAILED 2:3. (MAYOR CLARK AND COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON VOTED IN FAVOR, COUNCILORS HENDERSON, KING AND KUIPER VOTED AGAINST). (COUNCILOR BROUSE RECUSED AND COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark asked for another motion or discussion. The following motion was received.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-057 AS WRITTEN, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KING. MOTION PASSED 3:2, (COUNCILORS HENDERSON, KING AND KUIPER VOTED IN FAVOR, MAYOR CLARK AND COUNCIL PRESIDENT ROBINSON VOTED AGAINST). (COUNCILOR BROUSE RECUSED AND COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda.

10. CITIZEN COMMENTS:

No comments were received.

11. CITY MANAGER REPORT:

None.

Mayor Clark addressed the next item on the agenda.

11. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS:

City Council Minutes June 16, 2015 Page 19 of 22 Mayor Clark reported the City was majorly represented at the Portland Rose Festival this year and stated it was fantastic and a great experience and the City had its first City float, which highlighted the new Center for the Arts in a new festival category, small City floats. Mayor Clark stated the City took 1st place and the Sherwood High School Band and Mixolydians were also present. She stated she walked with Mayor Hales and other Oregon mayors, (a video clip of the parade was show).

Mayor Clark stated the City received the 1st place award for Small City Float. She said we could not had done it with the amazing work of Councilor Kuiper and the public works department who built the frame. Mayor Clark stated there were many volunteers that helped and recognized City employee Michelle Babcock with the Mayor's Award Certificate. Michelle thanked City Manager Gall for asking her to help and said it was a lot of fun. She commented that she spends a lot of time volunteering and doesn't have a lot going on besides work. She commented on the many individuals and groups that volunteered their time supporting the project as well as many City employees.

Councilor Kuiper shared a story about Michelle and decorating the float. Councilor Kuiper mentioned a list of people and groups that helped as well as Al's Garden Center for their donation of some of the plants. Michelle thanked the Council for the opportunity.

City Manager Gall also thanked the many volunteers and staff for their support. He commented on the Robin Hood Festival Association possibly taking the lead on this project next year. He recognized Councilor Kuiper for her support and connection to community members who volunteered time. He spoke of the parade and participants and said it was a lot of work and a lot of fun.

Mayor Clark commented that the Rose Festival parade organizers thanked her repeatedly for participating and were amazed at the work done on the float by volunteers. She said she is very proud of everyone involved and thought this was an opportunity for Sherwood to highlight our Center for the Arts.

Mayor Clark reported Cruis'In Sherwood was last weekend and was fantastic and she had the opportunity to kicked-off Friday Night Thunder and said she appreciated the opportunity to speak at this event. She reminded of the Robin Hood Festival on July 17-18 and said she was notified that she would be knighted this year and is very excited and thanked the Robin Hood Association for the honor. Mayor Clark confirmed with City Manager Gall that the mini float would be in the Robin Hood Parade. She reported she attended the SW Transportation Bus Tour and saw a bit of the extended bus service. She attended the Vision Action Network Annual Celebration and Cameron Award Presentation which honored the mental health response team. She explained the award and collaboration of the team with the Washington County Sheriff's Department and the program of addressing not necessarily criminal activity but mental health issues. She congratulated them on their award and thanked them for their service.

Councilor King reported he attended Cruis'In and helped with directing people. He reported Sherwood Main Street will hold their regular meeting on Thursday morning at 8 am.

Council President Robinson reported she missed the June 4th Sherwood West Citizen Advisory Committee meeting due to being sick and Councilor Harris attended in her place. She said the next meeting is this coming Thursday, June 18th and it will be an ice cream social and she and City Manager Gall will be serving ice cream at Edy Ridge, the event starts at 6 pm. She reported the planning commission did not meet last week and the Council held City Attorney interviews as the City transitions to an in house attorney. She reported there are five candidates and the Council will be narrowing that down with hopefully second interviews later this month and make a decision soon thereafter to get someone on board hopefully in July. She reported the previous planning commission meeting which she missed was the discussion over chickens and that discussion will continue on July 14th. She said the commission will meet on June 23rd and will be discussing the dog park application, she encouraged the public to attend.

Mayor Clark stated Councilor Harris is absent due to a sudden death in her family.

Councilor Kuiper reported the Robin Hood Festival Association is looking for volunteers and directed people to go to <u>Robinhoodfestival@gmail.com</u>, she said they are in need of help with setup near Veteran's Park and help with the children activities, they can also be reached at 503-625-4233. She stated she did not attend the Sherwood Cruis'In due to another commitment and said in speaking with people many did not know of the event and said it would be nice to have additional signage on the highway to direct people.

Councilor Brouse stated although she did not participate in the budget conversation she did participate in the budget hearings and told City Manager Gall he has an amazing staff and commented regarding the work put into the documentation. She said as a business professional that does budgets, staff went above and beyond and she is proud of their work. She reported Cruis'In was the most successful Cruis'In to date with 475 cars at the event and raised more money in sponsorships than in prior years. She commended Sherwood Chamber Executive Director Lana for her work and recognized the volunteers including Councilor Henderson for her coordination. She reported the block party was a first time event with Cruis'In and was a big success. She thanked those that attended and those that helped. She reported the Chamber Annual Awards Banquet is Thursday, June 25 and will be held at the Sherwood Center for the Arts and the theme is an 80's theme and tickets are still available for purchase. She stated in her professional role they do a lot of partnerships and said there is a group called the Washington County Kids Fund that is committed to creating a sustainable source of funding dedicated to proven successful programs that support schools and children by preventing child abuse, drug prevention, assuring high quality early childhood care and education and combating hunger. She said she has been invited to help present to the Board of Commissioners next Tuesday and said this is another partnership that is coming to Sherwood that will help in some of the promoted initiatives.

Councilor Henderson reported next week is the first of two weeks of Children's Missoula Theater, a partnership between the Sherwood Foundation for the Arts and the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission, scheduled for June 22-27. She said there are still spots available and enrollment can be done at Sherwoodarts.org. She reported July 8-11 the Sherwood Foundation for the Arts will be doing a production of "Into the Woods" at Stella Olsen park in partnership with the City. She thanked City staff for setting up the tent at Cruis'In Sherwood and for their help at this event.

Mayor Clark asked for a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR KING TO ADJOURN, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR HENDERSON, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL VOTING IN FAVOR. (COUNCILOR HARRIS WAS ABSENT).

12. ADJOURN:

Mayor Clark adjourned the meeting at 9:13 pm.

Submitted by:

Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder

l wym

Krisanna Clark, Mayor